
` 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:  WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2013 
TIME:  5:30 PM 
PLACE:  PHARR CITY HALL 
  2nd FLOOR, CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS  
  118 SOUTH CAGE BOULEVARD 
  PHARR, TEXAS 78577 

 
PRESIDING: DENNIS BURLESON, CHAIRMAN 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 

A. Update on SH 365 Project – Louis Jones, Program Manager  
B. Update on La Joya Relief Route – Jody Ellington, TxDOT 
C. Annual Progress Report for SH 365 – Pilar Rodriguez, HCRMA 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing Body 

and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if discussion is 
desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. The Governing 
Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item, whether or not such item(s) are posted as an 
Executive Session Item, at any time during the meeting when authorized by provisions of the Open Meeting Act.) 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held January 16, 2013. 
B. Approval of Project Expense Report for Period from January 9, 2013 to February 12, 2013 
C. Approval of Financial Report for December 2012 
D. Resolution 2013-08 – Authorizing the Removal of Joe Olivarez as a Signatory on all First National Bank 

Accounts and the Addition of Michael Cano, Ricardo Perez, Forrest Runnels, David Guerra, Alonzo Cantu and 
Josue Reyes as authorized Signatories on all First National Bank Accounts 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA  
 
A. Resolution 2013-05 – Approval of Request from Rio Grande Valley Partnership to Participate with the 2013 

Regional Mobility Study  
B. Resolution 2013-06 – Approval of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority’s 83rd Legislative Program 
C. Resolution 2013-07 – Approval of a Budget Amendment in the amount of $20,000 to fund Participation with 

the Rio Grande Valley Partnership 2013 Regional Mobility Study 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
A. Report on Texas Transportation Forum Meeting held on February 17-19, 2013, in Austin, Texas 

 
5. TABLED ITEMS 

 
A. Resolution 2013-04 – Extension of Professional Service Agreement for one (1) year with the Law Office of 

Dan Rios and Tuggey-Fernandez, LLP 
 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney and Financial Advisor on legal issues pertaining to financial options, 

including current obligations (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 



` 

B. Consultation with Board Attorney regarding legal issues pertaining to the scope of the proposed South Texas 
Class I Rail Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.)   
 

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY  
Public Comment Policy: “At the beginning of each HCRMA meeting, the HCRMA will allow for an open public 
forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one-half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 
allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak. All individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to 
do so, prior to the open comment period. The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to 
address issues or topics that are under the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part 
of the posted agenda for the meeting, HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No 
action or discussion shall be taken on issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. 
Members of the public may be recognized on posted agenda items deemed appropriate by the Chairman as these items 
are considered, and the same time limitations (3 minutes) applies.” 
 
 

 
C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

I, the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify that the attached agenda of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo 
County Court House (100 North Closner, Edinburg, Texas 78539), a place convenient and readily accessible to the 
general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the 14th day of February, 2013 at 12:00 pm and will 
remain so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance 
with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

                                 

        Flor E. Koll 
        Program Administrator 

 

 

 

Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Flor E. Koll at        
956-402-4762 at least 24 hours before the meeting. 

http://www.hcrma.net/


 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  1A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  PROGRAM MANAGER UPDATE ON SH 365 PROJECT     
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Report from Program Manager on progess with SH 365 Project      
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Report Only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DANNENBAUM – PROGRAM MANAGER 

1 02/20/2013 

PMC/GEC REPORT: HCRMA PROJECT STATUS 



DANNENBAUM – PROGRAM MANAGER 

2 

Overview 

1. Major Milestones 

 

2. SH 365: Schedule and Progress 

 

3. Construction Cost Trends 

02/20/2013 



DANNENBAUM – PROGRAM MANAGER 

3 

Major Milestones 

1. Environmental 
A. On Jan 24 FHWA concurred with TxDOT ENV on the environmental classification for an EA. 
B. Right of entry complete on SH 365 save for some additional properties identified by the 

Environmental consultant which will be resolved before hey head into the field.  
C. Historical resources is heading into field by the week of February 18th.  
D. Archeological resources should be in the field early March. 

2. Survey 
A. PMC has prepared a set of Supplemental Agreements for SH 365 Survey Contracts that update 

the scope of services which will be reviewed by the Planning Committee  
B. PMC prepared an updated Capital Improvement Plan based on the Strategic Plan Update has 

been prepared for review by the Planning Committee. 

3. Public Meetings 
A. HCRMA Staff, PMC ,and TEDSI held Stakeholder Coordination Meeting with Pharr, Pct. 2 and 

TxDOT with regard to the US 281 Project. 
B. PMC is coordinating the preparation of a larger Public Meetings for SH 365 in an Open House 

format late March.  

4. Other 
A. PMC launched new GIS portion of the website, more information can be found at 

www.hcrma.net and clicking on “GIS” in the main menu.  
B. PMC launched ProjectWise to internal users and will be deploying it to external users (HCRMA 

Staff, Board Members and Stakeholders with eventual deployment by HCRMA consultants).  

02/20/2013 

http://www.hcrma.net/


DANNENBAUM – PROGRAM MANAGER 

4 

SH 365: Schedule and Progress 

02/20/2013 



DANNENBAUM – PROGRAM MANAGER 

5 

Construction Cost Trends: 
% Change in CCI (Yearly Ave) 

02/20/2013 

1.5% 

2.6% 

3.0% 

2.7% 

3.1% 

4.3% 

2.8% 

4.1% 

4.7% 

6.3% 

2.4% 

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

10-yr Avg. 

1.5% between 
2013 and 2013  



DANNENBAUM – PROGRAM MANAGER 

6 

Construction Cost Trends:  
Asphalt Paving Prices 

1. The 20-city average price for 
liquid asphalt has increased: 

a. +1.2% in July 

b. +0.6% in August  

c. +0.9% in September 

d. +0.1% in October  

e. +0.4% in November 

f. -0.2% in December 

g. -0.3% in January 

2. Asphalt prices are still riding 
steep increases from last 
summer and currently 
remain 8.9% above a year 
ago 

02/20/2013 

Source: ENR.com Material Trends for Feb 4, 2013 
(Cement/Concrete/Aggregate) 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                    1B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  TXDOT UPDATE ON LA JOYA RELIEF ROUTE      
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:       Yes       X   No 
 
 Report from TxDOT on progress of La Joya Relief Route.       
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:    
    

5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.           
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  1C                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT FOR SH 365 PROJECT     
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Report on annual progress for SH 365 Project        
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Report Only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 
 











 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING HELD     

JANUARY 16, 2013            
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of minutes for the Hidalgo Count Regional Mobility Authority  Board  

of Directors Regular Meeting held January 16, 2013.       
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular  

Meeting held January 16, 2013.            
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



` 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened a Regular Meeting on Wednesday, January 
16, 2013, at 4:39 pm at the Pharr City Hall, City Commission Chamber, 2nd Floor, 118 South Cage Boulevard, Pharr, Texas, 
with the following present: 
 

Board Members:  Dennis Burleson, Chairman  HCRMA 
Michael G. Cano, Vice-Chairman  HCRMA 

    Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer HCRMA 
Joe Olivarez, Director   HCRMA 

    Forrest Runnels, Director  HCRMA 
David Guerra, Director   HCRMA 

    Alonzo Cantu, Director   HCRMA 
 
Staff:   Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director HCRMA 

Flor E. Koll, Program Administrator HCRMA 
    Dan Rios, Legal Counsel   HCRMA  
    Louis Jones, Program Manager  HCRMA 
     
  

CALL TO ORDER FOR WORKSHOP 
 
Chairman Burleson called the workshop to order.  
 
1. Review of SH 365 and IBTC Projects Development/Construction Cost and Financing Options  

Louis Jones, Dannenbaum Engineering, and  Richard Ramirez, First Southwest, , reviewed the Finance Plan and 
Development Cost for SH 365 and IBTC Projects. The SH 365 Project was projected to have an estimated $18.7 
Million short fall. Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director, recommended that the Board of Director continue to follow 
the adopted Program Manager Strategy No. 8 for SH 365, IBTC and Segment D and allow staff to determine 
options to reduce the short fall. No action taken. 
 

 ADJOURNMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 
Chairman Burleson called the regular meeting to order.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 

 
 

1. REPORTS 
 

A. Update of SH 365 Project – Louis Jones, Program Manager 
Louis Jones, Program Manager, provided a summary update on the progress for the SH 365 Project. Mr. Louis 
also reported that the Texas Department of Transportation had formally recommended to the Federal 
Highway Administration that the environmental classification for SH 365 be an Environmental Assessment. 
No action taken. 
 
 



` 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing 

Body and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if 
discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
The Governing Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item, whether or not such item(s) are 
posted as an Executive Session Item, at any time during the meeting when authorized by provisions of the Open 
Meetings Act.) 
 
Motion by Alonzo Cantu, with a second by Ricardo Perez, to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held December 18, 2012. 

Approved the Minutes for Regular Meeting held December 18, 2012 as presented. 
 

B. Approval of Project Expense Report for the Period from December 14, 2012 to January 8, 2013. 
Approved the Project Expense Report for the Period from December 14, 2012 to January 8, 2013. 
 

C. Approval of Financial Report for November 2012. 
Approved the Financial Report for November 2012 as presented. 

 
D. Resolution 2013-01 – Approval of Updates to the Internal Ethics Compliance Manual – Employee Conduct 

Manual. 
Approved Resolution 2013-01 – Approval of Updates to the Internal Ethics Compliance Manual – Employee 
Conduct Manual as presented. 

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
A. Resolution 2013-02 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 5 of Professional 

Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering for General Engineering and Continued Program 
Management of SH 365 and IBTC Projects. 
Motion by Alonzo Cantu, with a second by Forrest Runnels, to approve Resolution 2013-02 – Approval of 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 5 with Dannenbaum Engineering in the deduct 
amount of $78,132.97 for a revise Work Authorization Number 5 amount of $769,236.96, leaving a 
maximum fee balance of $2,568,696.56. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
B. Resolution 2013-03 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 6 to Professional Service Agreement with 

Dannenbaum Engineering for General Engineering and Continued Program Management of SH 365 and IBTC 
Projects. 
Motion by David Guerra, with a second by Joe Olivarez, to approve Resolution 2013-03 – Approval of Work 
Authorization Number 6 with Dannenbaum Engineering in the amount of $689,834.33, leaving a 
maximum fee balance of $1,878,862.23. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
C. Resolution 2013-04 – Extension of Professional Service Agreement for one (1) year with the Law Office of 

Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez, LLP. 
Motion by Alonzo Cantu, with a second by Forrest Runnels, to table Resolution 2013-04 – Extension of 
Professional Service Agreement for one (1) year with the Law Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez, 
LLP. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
A. Report on US 281 Coalition Meeting held on December 19, 2012, in Falfurrias, Texas. 

Chairman Burleson reported on US 281 Coalition Meeting. No action taken. 



` 

 
B. Report on Texas Transportation Forum Meeting to be held February 17-19, 2013, in Austin, Texas. 

Chairman Burleson reported on upcoming Texas Transportation Forum Meeting. No action taken. 
 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY) AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
The Board of Directors did not enter into Executive Session on any item(s). 
 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney and Financial Advisor on legal issues pertaining to financial options, 

including current obligations (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 

 
B. Consultation with Board Attorney regarding legal issues pertaining to the scope of the proposed South Texas 

Class I Rail Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was adjourned at 5:37 pm.  
 
 

  
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Dennis Burleson, Chairman 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT EXPENSE REPORT FROM JANUARY 9, 2013 

THROUGH FEBRUARY 12, 2013          
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project expense report for the period from January 9, 2013 to  

February 12, 2013.            
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A 
 

Funding Source:   Vehicle Registration Fund Balance after Expenses $4,062,607.17 
    
   General Account     $  27,938.17 
   Loop Account      $334,986.47 
   Debt Service Account                $148,347.02 
   Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period  $449,238.31 

       
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project expense report for the period from   
 January 9, 2012 to February 12, 2013 as presented.       
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: February 4, 2013 

Re: Expense Report for the Period from January 9, 2013 to February 12, 2013  

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on January 9, 2013 and ending on February 
12, 2013. 
 
Expenses for the General Account total $27,938.17, Loop Account total $334,986.47, and for the Debt 
Service Account total $148,347.02. The aggregate expense for the reporting period is $449,238.31. 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $449,238.31. 
 
This leaves a balance in the Vehicle Registration Fund after expenses of $4,062,607.17. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



General Account - 280003536
Make Check Payable to Date Memo: Amount Ck #

Salaries & Wages              

16200.000 City of McAllen 1/15/2013 00020773 Admin Fees 119.00$                           

16200.000 City of McAllen 1/9/2013 Payroll 1  12/24/12-1/6/13 9,926.39$                       

16200.000 City of McAllen 1/23/2013 Payroll 2   1/7/13-1/20/13 10,993.84$                     

Supplies                                       

16620.000 dahill 1/23/2013 002241  Copies 10/25/12-1/25/13 655.62$                           

Travel & Training                       

16660.000 A Fast Delivery 11/16/2012 2012004335  Courier Service 69.50$                             

16660.000 A Fast Delivery 1/16/2013 2013000254  Courier Service 111.25$                           

16660.000 A Fast Delivery 2/4/2013 2013000443  Courier Service 13.00$                             

16660.000 Pilar Rodriguez 2/5/2013 01292013 Travel Ausint 745.50$                           

16660.000 Flor E. Koll 2/11/2013 Mileage Reimbursement (Dec 2012) 66.05$                             

16660.000 Flor E. Koll 2/11/2013 Mileage Reimbursement (Jan 2013) 134.25$                           

Dues & Subscrpitions               

16100.000 IBTTA 1/31/2013 2013 Dues 2,140.00$                       

Rental Contractual                    

17150.000 City of Pharr 2/1/2013 020113  Rent for February 2013 1,000.00$                       

17210.000 City of Pharr 1/1/2013 518-13-001  phone, internet, IT 1,155.00$                       

17150.000 Wells Fargo 1/29/2013 6745409179  01/25/13-02/25/13 329.84$                           

Professional Services              

17210.000 Pena Designs 1/13/2013 08 Invoice 150.00$                           

17050.000 Salinas Allen Schmitt -$                                 

17100.000 Tuggey Fernandez -$                                 

17310.000 First National Bank 1/31/2013 Visa - Closing 1/31/13 328.93$                           

27,938.17$                     

Loop Account - 280003609
Engineering Services

28000.000 L&G Engineering 1/31/2013 11324379 SH365/Seg1/WA1 48,550.81$                     

28000.000 S&B Infrastructure 1/29/2013 U1695.100-04 SH365/Seg2/WA1 88,228.68$                     

28000.000 Tedsi 12/13/2013 20121391  SH365/Seg3/WA1 21,516.26$                     

28000.000 Tedsi 1/22/2013 20121439  SH365/Seg3/WA1 14,273.50$                     

Surveying Services

28000.000 Dos Land Surveying -$                                 

28000.000 Quintanilla Headley Assc -$                                 

Environmental

28000.000 Atkins 2/5/2013 1160412 SH 365 26,838.82$                     

Legal Services

27100.000 Dan Rios -$                                 

26600.000 Tuggey Fernandez 1/11/2013 10771  Travel 86.69$                             

27100.000 Tuggey Fernandez 1/11/2013 10772 1,083.00$                       

Program Management

28000.000 Dannenbaum 2/5/2013 465201/15/XV  WA6 97,110.61$                     

Acquisition Services

Financial Services

28000.000 First Southwest 1/22/2013 7348 LJRR T&R Study 37,298.10$                     

Transfers 23000.000 Hidalgo County RMA 2/1/2013 Reimbursement to General Acct 62,033.35$                     

334,986.47$                   

Debt Service - 280003862
47320.000 First National Bank Loan # 1286007585 148,347.02$                   

Vehicle Registration - 280003617
33000.000 HCRMA Transfer to Acct # 280003862 148,347.02$                   

Total 449,238.31$         

Recommend Approval/Pilar Rodriguez, E.D.

Date Approved

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer

Dennis Burleson, Chairman

EXPENSE REPORT

FEBRUARY 2013 







  

 

City of McAllenCity of McAllenCity of McAllenCity of McAllen

Memorandum

To: Flor E. Koll

From: Abel Carbajal

Assistant Payroll Manager

Date:

Re: Payroll for Pilar Rodriguez and Flor E. Koll

Please submit a check in the amount of to the Finance Department.  This 

is to cover the following:  through

The following is a breakdown:

RA Salary

RB Overtime 

RC

RD FICA

RE TMRS

RF TWC

RG Group Term Life Ins

RH Health Insurance Emp plus Fam 335.68

RI Workers Compensation

Total amount invoiced for:

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 956-681-1041.

Thank you.

530.56

0.00

January 9, 2013

9,926.39$                    

payroll from 12/24/2012 1/6/2013

8,421.66

7.92

0.00

9,926.39$                

0.00

630.57

fkoll
Typewritten Text

fkoll
Typewritten Text
PAYROLL 1 - 2013



  

 

City of McAllenCity of McAllenCity of McAllenCity of McAllen

Memorandum

To: Flor E. Koll

From: Abel Carbajal

Assistant Payroll Manager

Date:

Re: Payroll for Pilar Rodriguez and Flor E. Koll

Please submit a check in the amount of to the Finance Department.  This 

is to cover the following:  through

The following is a breakdown:

RA Salary

RB Overtime 

RC

RD FICA

RE TMRS

RF TWC

RG Group Term Life Ins

RH Health Insurance Emp plus Fam 335.68

RI Workers Compensation

Total amount invoiced for:

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 956-681-1041.

Thank you.

7.92

0.00

10,993.84$              

0.00

702.22

589.58

0.00

January 23, 2013

10,993.84$                  

payroll from 1/7/2013 1/20/2013

9,358.44

fkoll
Typewritten Text

fkoll
Typewritten Text
PAYROLL 2 - 2013



































 

INVOICE 

City of Pharr 
Attn:  Parth Naik (JR. Accountant) 

 

DATE: 02-01-2013 

118 South Cage / P.O. Box 1729, Pharr, Texas  78577 

Phone 956-702-5300 Extension 1910, Fax 956-702-5318 

 

 

 

TO Pilar Rodriguez 

Executive Director 

118 S. Cage Blvd., 4th Floor 

Pharr, Texas 78577 

956-607-8330 

 

 

CONTACT PERSON JOB PAYMENT DUE DATE INVOICE NUMBER 

Parth Naik Rent For Space 02-15-13                  020113 

 

QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL 

1 Rent For Office and Public meeting Space February 2013. $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 SUBTOTAL 1,000.00 

 SALES TAX  

 TOTAL $1,000.00 

 

Make all checks payable to City of Pharr 

 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR CONTRIBUTION! 







Peña Designs                                                                                                            INVOI CE 
P.O. Box 9572                      

Huntsville, TX 77340                    Invoice #08 

Phone (956) 655-9790                  Date: January 31, 2013 

penadesigns@gmail.com                                                                                                                                 

 

TO:                                                                                                            FOR: 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority                                          Website Maintenance 

P.O. Box 1766 

Pharr, TX 78577   

 

SERVICES AMOUNT 

January 1-31, 2013 

10 hours total for website maintenance 

 10 hours at $15.00 per hour 

$150.00 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

TOTAL DUE $150.00 

 

Make all checks payable to Peña Designs 
Payment is due within 30 days. 

If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact  

Eric Peña 

(956)655-9790 

penadesigns@gmail.com 

 

Thank you for your business! 





























































































































 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2C                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 

2012              
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of financial report for the month of December 2012.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:         
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Financial Report for the Month of December 

 2012 as presented.                
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















































 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                       AGENDA ITEM                   2D                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2013-08 – REMOVAL OF JOE OLIVAREZ AS SIGNATORY ON  

ALL FIRST NATIONAL BANK ACCOUNTS AND THE ADDITION OF MICHAEL CANO,   
RICARDO PEREZ, FORREST RUNNELS, DAVID GUERRA, ALONZO CANTU AND JOSUE  
REYES AS AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES ON ALL FIRST NATIONAL BANK ACCOUNTS.  

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of HCRMA 83rd Legislative Program.      
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:     
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2013-08 – Removal of Joe Olivarez as 

Signatory on all First Natinal Bank Accounts and the addition of Michael Cano, Ricardo  
Perez, Forrest Runnels, R. David Guerra, Alonzo Cantu and Josue Reyes as Authorized  
Signatories on all First National Bank Accounts.       

 
6. Program Manager Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: February 4, 2013 

Re: Resolution 2013-08 Authorizing the Deletion and Addition of Signatories for the 
First National Bank Accounts   

 
In order to update the signatories at First National Bank, a resolution approved by the Board of Directors 
is necessary to authorize any changes. 
 
The proposed changes to the signatories includes the removal of Joe Olivarez from all accounts and the 
addition of Michael Cano, Ricardo Perez, Forrest Runnels, R. David Guerra, Alonzo Cantu and Josue 
Reyes as authorized signatories on all First National Bank accounts. 
 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2013-08 is recommended as presented. 

 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2013-08 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REMOVAL OF JOE OLIVAREZ AS A SIGNATORY 
ON ALL FIRST NATIONAL BANK ACCOUNTS AND THE ADDITION OF MICHAEL 
CANO, RICARDO PEREZ, FORREST RUNNELS, DAVID GUERRA, ALONZO CANTU 

AND JOSUE REYES AS AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES ON ALL FIRST NATIONAL 
BANK ACCOUNTS 

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 20th day of February, 2013 by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has established certain bank accounts with First National 

Bank in connection with a letter of credit agreement by and between First National Bank and the 
Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, it has become necessary to revise the authorized signatories for the bank 

accounts; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 
 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board authorizes the removal of Joe Olivarez as an authorized signatory on 
all First National Bank Accounts. 
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the addition of Michael Cano, Ricardo Perez, Forrest 
Runnels, David Guerra, Alonzo Cantu and Josue Reyes as signatories on all First National Bank 
Accounts. 
 
 
 
 



***** 
 
 

Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 20th day of February 2013, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
       
Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  3A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2013-05 – APPROVAL OF REQUEST FROM RIO GRANDE 

VALLEY PARTNERSHIP TO PARTICIPATE WITH THE 2013 REGIONAL MOBILITY STUDY  
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of a request from the Rio Grande Partnership to participate in the  

amount of $20,000 for the 2013 Regional Mobility Study       
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Transportation Code    
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes        X   No          N/A  *Budget Amendment Required* 

 
Funding Source:    

 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to to approve Resolution 2013-05 to participate in the  

amount of $20,000 with the Rio Grande Valley Partnership’s 2013 Regional Mobility  
Study.                    

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X  None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: February 4, 2013 

Re: Request from Rio Grande Valley Partnership to Participate with 2013 Regional 
Mobility Study 

Attached is a request from the Rio Grande Valley Partnership for the HCRMA to participate with the 
2013 Regional Mobility Study in the amount of $30,000. 
 
The intent of the Regional Mobility Study is to: 
 

• Provide a single mobility plan that covers the entire region 
• Focus on regional needs 
• Developed based on need 
• Document support for priorities 

 
This office has coordinated with the Hidalgo County Judge’s Office and has negotiated a reduced 
participation of $20,000. 
 
Based on review by this office, approval Resolution 2013-05 for participation with the Rio Grande 
Valley Partnership 2013 Regional Mobility Study is recommended in the amount of $20,000. 

 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





August 23, 2012 



Agenda 

I.) Need …….…………………..….  Jody Ellington 

II.) Demographics …………….…..  Rebecca Castillo 

III.) Next Steps…………….………  Julian Alvarez 

 

 

Transportation Planning Partners: 
• RGV Partnership 

• MPO’s- Brownsville, Harlingen/San Benito & Hidalgo County 

• RMA’s – Cameron County & Hidalgo County 

• Starr County EDC 

• LRGVDC 

• TxDOT 

 

 



Why do we need a RMP update? 

Three Main Reasons: 

1.) Other plans don’t address regional needs  

 



Other Plans – MPO’s 

Brownsville, Harlingen-San Benito & 
Hidalgo County MPO Plans 

• MTP’s (25 year funded plans) 

• Plans cover urbanized area boundaries  

• Financially constrained - not necessarily 
need based 

• Contain many non-regional projects 
(local) 



Other Plans – RMA’s 
CCRMA Strategic Plan 

• Covers Cameron County 

• Comprehensive plan not financially constrained 

• Focused on SH 550, SH 32, 2nd Access, Outer Parkway & US 281 connector 

HCRMA Strategic Plan 
• Covers  Hidalgo County 

• 8 year financially constrained plan 

• Focused on construction of SH 365, and project development of IBTC and Loop Segment D 

 

 



Other Plans - RTP 
Rural Transportation Plan  

• Focused outside of MPO areas 

• Project listings with priority ranking 

• Not financially constrained 

• No designated funding source  



Other  Plans - BMP 

Regional Border Master Plan 

 US/Mexico Joint Working Committee for  

Border Transportation Planning 

 Valley wide plan focused on International 

POE and connectivity type projects 

 Prioritization of Federal resources 

 Pending - One year to complete  



Reason #1 Summary 
(Other plans don’t address regional needs) 

  
MPO, RMA, Rural & Border Master Plans: 

 Cover separate areas/issues 

 Focus on local projects 

 Don’t address regional needs (generally 

financially constrained) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Why do we need a RMP Update? 

Three Main Reasons: 

1.) Other plans don’t address regional needs  

2.) RGV is at a disadvantage without one  

 



Current Mobility Funding 

Statewide 2013 UTP Allocations ($790.6M/Yr) 
 Metro/Urban Corridor (Cat 2) = $ 254.9M/Yr thru 2020, then $0 

 Metro Mobility (Cat 7) = $267.8M/Yr 

 District Discretionary (Cat 11) = $62.6M/Yr 

 Commission Strategic Priority (Cat 12) = $ 205.3M/Yr 

 

RGV 2013 UTP Allocations ($13.9M/yr) 
 Metro/Urban Corridor (Cat 2) = 0$ 

 Metro/Mobility (Cat 7) = $ 11.4M/Yr 

 District Discretionary (Cat 11) = $2.5M/Yr 

 

Other/Local Funding  
 CBI (Cat 10) = $12.4M/Yr 

 CCRMA (VRF) = $ 2.5M/Yr 

 HCRMA (VRF) = $ 5M/Yr 

 

 



Non-Traditional Funding 

American Recovery & Reinvestment Act 
 MPO Allocation = $30M 

 District Preservation = $17.6M 

 Commission Discretionary = $119M (US 281 Fal, SH 550 & US 
83/Bryan Road) 

 

Prop 12 (GRB) = $164.8M 

 

Prop 14 (SHFB)= $41M  

 

TMF/Prop 12/Prop 14 Savings/Restructuring ($2B Available) 
 MPO Allocation = $ 31.4M 

 District Allocation = $ 40.3M 

 Commission Discretionary (Strategic Partnerships) = $ 8.2M (out of 
$200M)  

 Commission  Discretionary (Statewide Connectivity) = $ 0 (out of 
$212.5M) However, $101M went to I69 coming to the RGV- $41M for 
US 281 Premont & $60M for US 77 from Kingsville to Driscoll. 

 

 

 



Reason #2 Summary 
(RGV is at a disadvantage without one) 

Funding  

 Traditional funding won’t address needs, and 

current plans don’t identify all needs 

 Competition for additional funding is tough without 

a single documented plan supported by all. 

 There is a perception that the RGV is not united in 

its regional priorities. 

 

 

 

 



Why do we need a RMP? 

Three Main Reasons: 

1.) Other plans don’t address regional needs  

2.) RGV is at a disadvantage without one  

3.) Previous RMP’s have paid off 

 



1992 Plan 



2003 Plan Update 



Reason #3 Summary 
(Previous plans have paid off) 

     

1992 Plan 
• Completed approximately 85% of major corridor 

projects identified (US 83, US 281, US 77) 

• Completed approximately 75% of other corridor 
projects identified. 

 

2003 Plan 
• Completed approximately 75% of major corridor 

projects identified (US 83, US 281, US 77). 

• Completed approximately 75% of other corridor 
projects identified. 

 

 

 



Summary 

Why we need a RMP Update: 
1.) Other plans don’t address regional needs  

2.) RGV is at a disadvantage without one  

3.) Previous RMP’s have paid off 

 

Regional Mobility Plan update would: 
 Provide a single plan covering the entire region 

 Focus on regional needs 

 Be needs based (not financially constrained) 

 Document valley-wide support of regional priorities 

 Support local delegations in pursuing additional funding  

 Build on previous success 

 

 



    

Rebecca Castillo 

 

Demographics 

















    

Julian Alvarez 

 

Next Steps 



Development of 2013 Plan Update 

Ownership/Sponsor 
 RGV Partnership through its Transportation committee 

 Steering committee guidance (TxDOT District Engineer, MPO 
Directors, RMA Directors, Starr County EDC, LRGVDC Director, 
Valley Partnership Transportation committee representatives). 

 

Timeline and costs 
 Study could be developed in approximately 4 months from 

Notice to Proceed 

 Consultant cost estimated at $150-200K. 
 

Stakeholder Support  
 Public Involvement  (meetings, presentation at MPO/RMA and 

County meetings) 

 Formal support requested via resolutions and adoption on 
signature page 



Development of 2013 Plan Update 

Next Steps 

• Procurement of consultant by Valley 
Partnership (September/October 2012) 

• Scope and fee negotiated with Steering 
committee’s assistance. (October/November 
2012) 

• Plan development (Including public 
involvement and stakeholder meetings) 
(November 2012 – February 2013) 

• Plan adoption and support documents 
(Resolutions, etc.) by March/April 2013 



 

QUESTIONS? 
 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                       AGENDA ITEM                   3B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
2. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2013-06 – APPROVAL OF HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL  

MOBILITY AUTHORITY 83RD LEGISLATIVE PROGRAM.       
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of HCRMA 83rd Legislative Program.      
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:     
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2013-06 - HCRMA 83rd Legislative  

program as presented.               
 
6. Program Manager Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: February 4, 2013 

Re: Approval of HCRMA’s 83rd Legislative Program   

Attached is the proposed 83rd Legislative Program for the HCRMA. The program outlines the priorities 
for HCRMA during the current legislative session. The proposed priorities are: 
 

• Support securing funds from the “Rainy Day” Fund for transportation infrastructure development 
• Support construction of State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) 
• Support designation of Overweight Truck Vehicle Corridor in Hidalgo County  
• Support the development of an international rail bridge in Hidalgo County 
• Support legislation that streamlines the environmental review process for transportation projects 
• Support Public-Private Partnerships and Transportation Reinvestment Zones for development of 

transportation infrastructure 
• Support toll enforcement remedies for the efficient collection of tolls 

o Vehicle registration block 
o Vehicle ban/seizure through administrative hearing process 
o Booting of vehicles 

• Support granting local entities tools and options to address transportation needs 
• Monitor Vehicle Registration Fee changes 
• Monitor the increase in trade and impact on Texas roads resulting from the Panama Canal 

expansion 
• Oppose diversions from the State Highway Fund 

 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2013-06 – Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authorities 83rd Legislative Program is recommended. 
  
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hidalgo County  
Regional Mobility Authority 

 

83rd Legislative Session Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 
 
 
 

January 16, 2013 
 
Re: Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 83rd Legislative Session 
Program 
 
 
 
 
Dear Honorable Members of the Texas State Legislature: 
 
Attached please find a copy of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
Legislative Priorities for the 83rd Legislative Session. We share your concern about 
long-term transportation infrastructure funding and appreciate your consideration 
of statewide and local options that will allow us to continue building the 
infrastructure needed for the continued growth of the state. 
 
We look forward to meeting with you soon to further discuss our legislative 
priorities and projects. If we may ever be of assistance, please feel free to contact me 
or Mr. Pilar Rodriguez at 956.402.4762. 
 
 
Truly Yours, 
 
 
 
Dennis Burleson 
Chairman 
  



  

RESOLUTION ADOPTING  
83RD LEGISLATIVE SESSION PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 

[INSERT RESOLUTION]

  



  

Page 1 of 5 
 

Board of Directors  

[Insert short bios] 

 

 

Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

Michael G. Cano, Vice Chairman 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 

Alonzo Cantu, Director 

David Guerra, Director 

Joe Olivarez, Director 

Forrest Runnels, Director  



  

Page 2 of 5 
 

Executive Summary 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) is committed to the development of 
a transportation system that is safe, appropriate, and promotes economic development. 
We recognize that adequate infrastructure is essential to promote the state’s continued 
growth and appreciate the support state leaders have provided to us to ensure we have 
the necessary resources to meet the needs of Texas residents and visitors.   

To ensure the state continues the positive growth trend, HCRMA joins the many state and 
local leaders seeking a long term solution that addresses the transportation infrastructure 
funding concerns. Many state leaders and TxDOT officials have stated that funding for new 
roads could run out by 2014, leaving only funding for maintenance of existing roads 
(assuming those costs do not increase substantially). This issue is of great concern 
because it can lead to having inadequate infrastructure that will slow down development 
and impact the safety of Texas drivers. We hereby request your support for initiatives that 
ensure there is adequate funding for transportation infrastructure projects. 

HCRMA also requests your support for initiatives that empower local entities to 
undertake infrastructure development projects and promote economic development. 
Tools such as Transportation Reinvestment Zones and Public-Private Partnerships afford 
regions the opportunity to develop much needed projects at a faster pace. We are proud to 
share that we have partnered with Hidalgo County for the formation of a Transportation 
Reinvestment Zone that will allow us to fund a portion of our much needed projects and 
look forward to the continuation and development of tools that generate such partnership 
opportunities. 

Finally, the HCRMA is undertaking various projects that will promote safety and allow for 
more efficient movement of goods through this region. Below please find an overview of 
these projects:  

• HCRMA is currently developing two new corridors: (1) State Highway 365 and (2) 
International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC). These corridors will connect Ports of 
Entry and Foreign Trade Zones, will provide truck traffic with an alternative route 
to transport goods that is more efficient, and will establish appropriate east-west 
connectivity in an area currently lacking, thereby stimulating economic 
development along these routes.  

• HCRMA is proposing an overweight truck corridor that will make our region and 
Texas more attractive for the movement of goods such as produce for distribution 
across the country.  

• HCRMA is considering strategies for the development of an international rail 
bridge. An international rail bridge would be a major economic driver for our 
region as it would allow us to attract new industries and expedite freight 
movement.  

The HCRMA Board kindly requests your support of these projects. A complete list of our 
legislative priorities can be found herein. 



  

Page 3 of 5 
 

Legislative Priorities 
 
 Transportation 

 

South Texas is one of the fastest growing regions in the state and the gateway 
for the state’s largest trading partner, Mexico. The booming population and 
location bring about many opportunities to our region that can result in 
significant statewide growth; yet, these assets also present unique challenges 
that could impact future development.  

To ensure continued growth and promote economic development, we ask for 
your consideration and support of the following items. 

o Support securing funds from the “Rainy Day” Fund for transportation 
infrastructure development 

o Support construction of State Highway 365 and International Bridge 
Trade Corridor (IBTC) 

o Support designation of Overweight Truck Vehicle Corridor in Hidalgo 
County  

o Support the development of an international rail bridge in Hidalgo 
County 

o Support legislation that streamlines the environmental review process 
for transportation projects 

o Support Public-Private Partnerships and Transportation Reinvestment 
Zones for development of transportation infrastructure 

o Support toll enforcement remedies for the efficient collection of tolls 

 Vehicle registration block 

 Vehicle ban/seizure through administrative hearing process 

 Booting of vehicles 

o Support granting local entities tools and options to address 
transportation needs 

o Monitor Vehicle Registration Fee changes 



  

Page 4 of 5 
 

o Monitor the increase in trade and impact on Texas roads resulting 
from the Panama Canal expansion 

o Oppose diversions from the State Highway Fund 

This Agenda is subject to change upon Board approval.  



  

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority appreciates your 

consideration. Please feel free to contact us if we may be of assistance. 

 

 

For Questions or Comments Please Contact: 

 
 
 

Mr. Pilar Rodriguez 
Executive Director 

Phone No: 956.420.4762 
Email: prodriguez@hcrma.net  

PO Box 1766 
Pharr, Texas 78577 

www.hcrma.net 
 

mailto:prodriguez@hcrma.net


 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                       AGENDA ITEM                   3C                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 

3. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2013-07 – APPROVAL OF A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $20,000 TO FUND PATICIPATION WITH THE RIO GRANDE VALLEY  
PARTNERSHIP’S 2013 REGIONAL MOBILITY STUDY.      

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of a Budget Amendment in the amount of $20,000 to fund   

participation with the Rio Grande Valley Partnership’s Regional Mobility Study.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:     
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2013-07 – Approval of a Budget  

Amendment in the amount of $20,000 to fund participation with the Rio Grande Valley  
Partnership’s 2013 Regional Mobility Study.         

 
6. Program Manager Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: February 4, 2013 

Re: Approval of a Budget Amendment in the amount of $20,000 to Fund 
Participation with the Rio Grande Valley Partnership’s 2013 Regional Mobility 
Study   

 
On December 18, 2012, the HCRMA Board of Directors adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Operating and 
Capital Budget in the amount of $5,774,415. The adopted budget is divided into three sections; 
revenues, expenditures and details. 
 
In coordination with the request from the Rio Grande Valley Partnership to participate with the 2013 
Regional Mobility Update, a budget amendment is the amount of $20,000 will be necessary if the Board 
of Directors approves the request. 
 
Attached is a draft budget amendment, which details the line item to be added to accommodate the 
proposed increase.  
 
The proposed amendment increases the Fiscal Year Budget from $5,774,415 to $5,794,415. 
 
The budget remains balanced with all expenditures less than revenues for the year. 
 
Based on review by this office, adoption of the proposed budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2013 
is recommended in the amount of $20,000 for a revised budget of $5,794,415.  

 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2013-07 

 
 

AMENDMENT OF  FISCAL YEAR 2013 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $20,000 TO FUND PARTICIPATION WITH THE RIO GRANDE VALLEY 

PARTNERSHIP’S 2013 REGIONAL MOBILITY STUDY 
 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 20TH   day of February, 2013 by the Board of Director of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is required to report to the Texas Department of 

Transportation the annual operating and capital budget adopted and any amendments pursuant to 
the Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility 
Authority Reports and Audits), as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s fiscal year commences on January 1, 2013 and ends on 

December 31, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Operating and Capital Budget 

on December 18, 2012 in the amount of $5,774,415; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined it is in the best interest of the Authority to 

increase the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget in the amount of $20,000 to fund participation with the Rio 
Grande Valley Partnership’s 2013 Regional Mobility Study; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s Fiscal Year 2013 Operating and Capital Budget is amended 

in the amount of $20,000 for an increase to and revised budget of $5,794,415; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
 
 
 
 



Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board amends the Fiscal Year 2013 Operating and Capital Budget in the 
amount of $20,000, for an increase to and revised budget of $5,794,415, hereto attached as 
Exhibit A. 

 
Section 3. The Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director to manage and 
administer the amended Fiscal Year 2013 Operating and Capital Budget. 
 
 

***** 
 

 
Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 20th day of February 2013, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
       
Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  
AMENDED FISCAL YEAR 2013 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 



HCRMA
Budget Amendment

Fund

Line Item

Beginning Revised
Budget Credit Debit Budget

$4,062,607 $20,000 $4,042,607

$0 $20,000 $20,000
Totals $4,062,607 $20,000 $20,000 $4,062,607

Date

Executive Director Approval

35040.000
Description

Justification: Participation with Rio Grande Valley Partnership 2013 Regional
Mobility Study in the amount of $20,000.

General Account

HCRMA Miscellaneous

Reference

17310.000 Miscellaneous

Board of Director Approval: February 20, 2013
Resolution: 2013-07

Vehicle Registration Fee Balance



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   5A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          2/04/13                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       2/20/13  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
2. Agenda Item:  TABLED ITEM - RESOLUTION 2013-04 – EXTENSION OF PROFESSIONAL  

SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR ONE (1) YEAR WITH THE LAW OFFICE OF DAN RIOS AND  
TUGGEY FERNANDEZ, LLP          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of a one year extension to the professional service agreement for  

legal services with the Law Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez, LLP.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A 
 

Funding Source:   Loop Fund     
 
    

6. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2013-04 for a one (1) year extension 
to the Professional Service Agreement with the Law Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey  
Fernandez, LLP.                 

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Dennis Burleson, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: February 4, 2013 

Re: Extension of Professional Service Agreement for One (1) Year with the Law 
Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez, LLP.  

On April 13, 2010, the HCRMA Board of Directors approved a Professional Service Agreement with Law 
Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Rosenthal Pauerstein Sandoloski Agather, LLP for legal service for an 
period of two (2) years. Section 5 of the Agreement contains provisions that allow for annual one (1) 
year extensions after the initial two year period.  On May 23, 2011, the HCRMA Board of Directors 
approved assignment of duties and obligation of Tuggey Rosenthal Pauerstein Sandoloski Agather to 
Tuggey Fernandez.  
 
The Agreement with Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez is to provide the HCRMA Board of Directors 
and/or the Executive Director with legal services when requested.  
 
The terms of the Agreement remain the same and no changes are proposed at this time. 
 
Based on review by this office, approval of a one (1) year extension of the Professional Service 
Agreement with Law Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez is recommended. The extension 
would become effective April 13, 2013. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2013 – 04 

  
EXERCISING ONE YEAR EXTENSION TO THE PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE LAW OFFICE OF DAN RIOS AND 
TUGGEY FERNANDEZ, LLP. 

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 16th day of January, 2013 by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on April 13, 2010 the Authority entered into a Professional Services 

Agreement with the Law Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Rosenthal Pauerstein Sandoloski 
Agather, LLP to provide reasonable and necessary legal services to the Authority;  

 
WHEREAS, on May 23, 2011 the Authority amended the Professional Services 

Agreement and assigned all responsibility and obligations of Tuggey Rosenthal Pauerstein 
Sandoloski Agather, LLP to Tuggey Fernandez, LLP.; 

 
WHEREAS, the agreement was entered into for an initial two year period with provisions 

to exercise annual one year extensions after the two year period; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined it is in the best interest of the Authority to 

exercise a one year extension to the Professional Service Agreement with the Law Office of Dan 
Rios and Tuggey Fernandez, LLP.;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves a one year extension to the Professional Services 
Agreement with the Law Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez, LLP. hereto attached as 
Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the extension to the 
Professional Services Agreement with the Law Office of Dan Rios and Tuggey Fernandez, LLP. 
as approved. 



 
 

***** 
 



 
PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 16th day of January, 2013, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
              
      Dennis Burleson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

THE LAW OFFICE OF DAN RIOS 
AND 

TUGGEY FERNANDEZ, LLP 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ONE YEAR EXTENSION TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
WITH TUGGEY FERNANDEZ AND THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL RIOS  

DATE APRIL 13, 2010 

INITIAL AGREEMENT PERIOD OF TWO YEARS 

ONE YEAR EXTENSION EFFECTIVE DATE APRIL 13, 2013 

 

 
TUGGEY FERNANDEZ, LLP   HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL  
       MOBILITY AUTHORITY  
 
 
 
 
By:       By:       
      Blakely Fernandez, Managing Partner        Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 
 
Date:       Date:     
 
LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL RIOS, PC 
 
 
 
 
 
By:       
      Daniel G. Rios, Proprietor 
 
Date:     
























	Notice & Agenda
	Item 1A - Program Manager Update on SH 365
	Item 1B - TxDOT Update on La Joya Relief Route
	Item 1C - Annual Progress Report on SH 365 Project
	Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for January 16, 2013
	Item 2B - Approval of Project Expense Report
	Item 2C - Approval of Financial Report for the month of December 2012
	Item 2D - Resolution 2013-08 - Removal of Joe Olivarez as Signatory on all First National Bank Accounts
	Item 3A - Resolution 2013-05 - Approval of Request from RGV Partnership to participate with 2013 Regional Mobility Study
	Item 3B - Resolution 2013-06 - Approval of 83rd Legislative Program
	Item 3C - Resolution 2013-07 - Approval of Budget Amendment in the amount of $20,000 to participate with RGVP 2013 Regional Mobility Study
	Item 5A - Tabled Item - Resolution 2013-04 - Extension of Professional Service Agreement for One Year with Tuggey Fernandez and the Law Office of Dan Rios



